
Pre-Agenda Session @ 5:30 p.m. 

 
A G E N D A 

City Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 19, 2024 – 6:00 p.m. 

 OPENING 
 Call to Order 

 Invocation   

 Pledge of Allegiance  

 Roll Call 

 

 FORMAL PUBLIC COMMENT 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Formal Public Comment – City Council Agenda Protocol 
 

The City of Garden City has identified this portion of the meeting to allow individuals an opportunity to formally 
address the City Council on issues of importance.  Garden City requires that individuals who desire to formally 
address the City Council submit a written request form outlining the subject matter that they intend to discuss so 
that they can be placed on the meeting agenda.  Members of the public desiring to be placed on the agenda to 
present or address matters to the City Council must submit a formal “REQUEST TO BE PLACED ON THE CITY 
COUNCIL AGENDA” form to the Office of the City Manager at least 10 days prior to the requested City Council 
meeting date that you wish to speak.  City Council meetings are held on the first and third Monday of each month 
so the request must be submitted no later than 5:00 pm on the Friday which constitutes 10 days prior.  The 
request can be done in person, regular mail, fax or e-mail and the speaker should obtain acknowledgement of the 
request from the City to demonstrate that the 10 day requirement has been met.  The request form may be 
obtained from the Office of the City Manager and on the City’s website www.gardencity-ga.gov.  The request 
should state the name of the individual(s) desiring to be heard and the subject matter to be presented to City 
Council.  Requests may be referred at the discretion of the City Manager, to appropriate staff for mediation prior 
to being placed on the public agenda.  Please be advised the completion of a request form does not entitle the 
speaker to be added to the agenda. 
 

http://www.gardencity-ga.gov/


 RECEIPT OF INFORMAL PUBLIC COMMENT  
Procedure: To best manage this meeting section, any person who desires to address the City Council 
must sign up using the process outlined on the website where this meeting is advertised.  Once 
recognized by the Mayor, the person will be allowed to speak in accordance with the Informal Public 
Comment–Speaker Protocols outlined below.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 PUBLIC HEARINGS 
1. PC-3-24-1077 – Zoning Map Amendment Request:  Receipt of public comment on a request by Robert L 

McCorkle, III to rezoned 5231 Ogeechee Road from R-A to I-1.  Ogeechee Road from C-2 to I-1 and 
Ogeechee Road from C-2 to I-1 for proposed use as a general office/warehouse and cross-dock facility for 
SAIA LTL freight with ancillary truck and trailer parking.   The Petitioner requests a continuance to the April 
9th Planning Commission meeting.  
 

2. PC2325 – Zoning Text Amendment Request:  Receipt of public comment on a request by the City of 
Garden City, Georgia, as amended, to revise Chapter 90, Article VI, pertaining to signs, for the purpose of 
revising the provisions thereof regarding the limitations, safeguards, and controls for the location of 
outdoor advertising or separate use signs. The Planning Commission recommended tabling the request for 
further study.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Speaking to a Public Hearing Item Protocol 

In the interests of time and to ensure fairness of all persons who appear before the City Council to speak for or 
against a public hearing item, speakers will be limited to three (3) minutes each to address City Council except as 
described herein.  One speaker for the Petitioner may address the City Council for no more than 10 minutes, 
unless extended by the Mayor.  In an effort help the City Council and the general public to better understand the 
issues, the Mayor may request that a City staff member address the City Council from the podium.  Speakers 
from the general public may only speak when recognized by the Mayor during the public hearing.  Speakers will 
be asked to come to the podium to address the City Council for three (3) minutes and they shall state their name 
and resident address for the record.   

Speakers addressing City Council on a public hearing item should coordinate comments to respect City Council’s 
time limits.  Groups should select a spokesperson to present the major points that summarize their position and 
opinions.  Speakers are urged to be brief and non-repetitive with their comments.  Comments shall specifically 
address the public hearing item before the City Council, and the speaker shall maintain appropriate tone and 
decorum when addressing the City Council.  City Council may ask questions of the applicant, speakers, or staff 
during these proceedings only for the purpose of clarifying information.  The speaker shall not direct derogatory 
comments to any individual, organization, or business.  At the conclusion of the three (3) minute time period, the 
speaker will be notified that his/her time has elapsed, and the next speaker will be recognized to come forward 
to the podium and address the City Council.  Once the public hearing is closed on an item, there will be no 
further opportunity for formal or informal public input at a City Council meeting. 
 



 
 

 

  

PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING PUBLIC HEARINGS ON PROPOSED ZONING DECISIONS BEFORE 
GARDEN CITY’S MAYOR AND COUNCIL AND STANDARDS GOVERNING THE EXERCISE OF  

CITY COUNCIL’S ZONING POWER 
 
Procedures for Conducting Public Hearings on Proposed Zoning Decisions: 
All public hearings conducted by the Mayor and Council on Garden City, Georgia, on proposed zoning decisions shall 
be conducted as follows: 

(1) All public hearings by the Mayor and Council on zoning amendments shall be chaired by the 
Mayor. 

(2) The Mayor shall open the hearing by stating the specific zoning amendment being considered 
at the public hearing and further stating that printed copies of the adopted standards 
governing the exercise of the Mayor and Council’s zoning power and the procedures 
governing the hearing are available to the public. 

(3) The Director of the City’s Planning and Zoning Department shall advise the Mayor and 
Council of the recommendation of the Planning Commission when applicable. 

(4) The Mayor shall determine the number of attendees who desire to testify or present evidence 
at the hearing. 

(5) When there is a large number of individuals wishing to testify at a hearing, the Mayor may 
invoke time limits on individual speakers.  In such cases, these time limits shall apply to all 
speakers.  Proponents, including the petitioner or the petitioner’s agent requesting the zoning 
decision, shall have no less than ten (10) minutes for the presentation of data, evidence, and 
expert opinions; opponents of the proposed decision shall have an equal minimum period of 
time.  The Mayor may grant additional time; provided, however, an equal period of time shall 
be granted both sides. 

(6) The petitioner requesting such zoning decision, or the applicant’s agent, shall be recognized 
first and shall be permitted to present and explain the request for the zoning decision.  
Thereafter, all individuals who so desire shall be permitted to speak in favor of the zoning 
decision. 

(7) After all individuals have had an opportunity to speak in accordance with subparagraph (6) 
above, those individuals present at the public hearing who wish to speak in opposition to the 
requested zoning decision shall have an opportunity to speak. 

(8) The Mayor may limit repetitious comments in the interest of time and may call for a show of 
hands of those persons present in favor of or opposed to the proposed decision. 

(9) It shall be the duty of the Mayor to maintain decorum and to assure the public hearing on the 
proposed decision is conducted in a fair and orderly manner. 

(10) Once all parties have concluded their testimony, the Mayor shall adjourn the public hearing. 
Standards Governing the Exercise of The Zoning Powers of Garden City’s Mayor and Council: 
Prior to making a zoning amendment, the Mayor and Council shall evaluate the merits of a proposed 
amendment according to the following criteria: 

(1) Is this request a logical extension of a zoning boundary which would improve the pattern of 
uses in the general area? 

(2) Is this spot zoning and generally unrelated to either existing zoning or the pattern of 
development of the area? 

(3) Could traffic created by the proposed use or other uses permissible under the zoning sought 
traverse established single-family neighborhoods on minor streets, leading to congestion, 
noise, and traffic hazards? 

(4) Will this request place irreversible limitations or cause material detriment on the area 
similarly zoned as it is or on future plans for it? 

(5) Is there an imminent need for the rezoning and is the property likely to be used for the use 
requested? 

(6) Would the proposed use precipitate similar requests which would generate or accelerate 
adverse land use changes in the zone or neighborhood? 

 



 

 Approval of City Council Minutes   
 Consideration of the minutes from the March 4th Pre-Agenda Session, City Council Minutes, and March 

11th Council Workshop. 
 

 ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
1. Ordinance – Zoning Map Amendment (5524 Silk Hope Road): An ordinance to annex certain 

property owned by 1143 & 1145 Dean Forest Road, LLC., and located at 5524 Silk Hope Road, 
Savannah, Georgia, into the City of Garden City, Georgia, pursuant to Title 36, Chapter 36, Article 2, 
of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated (The 100% Method); to rezone said property to a “R-2” 
zoning classification.  

 
2. Resolution – Planning Commission Appointment:  A resolution to appoint Chad Flowers to serve on 

the City’s consolidated Board of Zoning Appeals/Planning Commission in the position vacated by Billy 
Jackson for the remainder of Mr. Jackson’s term, which runs from January 18, 2022, until his successor 
is appointed by City Council at Council’s first regular meeting in January 2028.  

 
3. Resolution – Prosecuting Attorney Agreement (Bradley):  A resolution by the City Council to 

authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Caroline Bradley, which sets 
forth the terms of Ms. Bradley’s appointment as the City’s Prosecuting Attorney.  

 
4. Resolution – Public Defender Agreement (Wilson): A resolution by the City Council to authorize the 

Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Ty Wilson, which sets forth the terms of Mr. 
Wilson’s appointment as the City’s Public Defender.  

 
5. Resolution – SCAD System (Wastewater & Water Treatment): A resolution to authorize the Interim 

City Manager to sign the purchase contract or order for the upgrade of the City’s existing wastewater 
SCADA system. 

 
6. Resolution – Vacuum Excavator (Water/Sewer Repair): A resolution to authorize the Interim City 

Manager to sign the purchase contract or order for a vacuum excavator for excavating when working 
underground on water and sewer pipes. 

 
7. Resolution – Pipeline Inspection Camera (Water/Sewer Repair): A resolution to authorize the 

Interim City Manager to sign the purchase order or order for a pipeline inspection camera to inspect 
underground water and sewer pipes.   

 
8. Resolution – Compaction Roller (Public Works): A resolution to authorize the Interim City Manager 

to sign the purchase order or order for a compaction roller for its Public Works Department to pack 
asphalt when filling potholes and for other packing needs. 

 
9. Resolution – Tough Books for Police Vehicles: A resolution to authorize the Interim City Manager to 

sign the purchase order or order for laptops to replace the existing laps in the police vehicles.  
 



10. Resolution – 2024 F-150 Super Cab Truck (Parks & Recreation): A resolution to authorize the Interim 
City Manager to sign the purchase order or order for a 2024 F-150 4x4 Super Cab Truck to replace the 
older 2003 pick-up truck with a bad transmission in the Parks & Recreation department.

11. Resolution – FY23 General Fund Year-End Budget Amendment:  A resolution to amend the fiscal 
year 2023 General Fund budget; to adjust for the differences between the originally adopted and 
presently projected revenues and expenditures.

12. Resolution – FY23 Enterprise Funds Year-End Budget Amendment:  A resolution to amend the four 
Enterprise Funds budgets; to adjust for the difference between the originally adopted and presently 
projected revenues and expenditures.

13. Resolution – FY23 Special Revenues Funds Year-End Budget Amendment:  A resolution to amend 
the two Special Revenue Funds budgets; to adjust for the differences between the originally adopted 
and presently projected revenues and expenditures.

14. Resolution – FY23 SPLOST Fund Year-End Budget Amendment:  A resolution to amend the SPLOST 
Fund budget; to adjust for the difference between the originally adopted and presently projected 
revenues and expenditures.

15. Resolution – FY23 Capital Projects Fund Year-End Budget Amendment:  A resolution to amend the 
Capital Projects Fund budget for the new gym recreation complex; to adjust for the difference 
between the originally adopted and presently projected revenues and expenditures.

16. Resolution – FY23 ARPA Fund Year-End Budget Amendment:  A resolution to amend the ARPA Fund 
budget; to adjust for the differences between the originally adopted and presently projected 
revenues and expenditures.

 ADJOURN















































  
PRE AGENDA SESSION SYNOPSIS – MARCH 3, 2024  1 

 

SYNOPSIS 
Pre-Agenda Session 

Monday, March 4, 2024 – 5:30 p.m. 
 

 
Council Members:  Mayor Bruce Campbell, Mayor Por-tem Marcia Daniel, Councilmember Gwyn 
Hall, Councilmember Richard Lassiter, Jr., Councilmember Natalyn Morris, Councilmember Ruiz, 
and Councilmember Tice. 
 
Staff Members:  Rhonda Ferrell-Bowles, Interim City Manager; James P. Gerard, City Attorney; 
Yolanda Irizarry, HR Director; Gil Ballard, Chief of Police; Cliff Ducey, Recreation Director; Robert 
Wellmaker, Building Inspector; Jonathan Trego, Code Enforcement Officer; Mike Dick, Fire Chief; 
Marth Vallada, Water Operations Manager; Virgil Moore, Public Works Manager; Dagny Pariani, 
Wastewater/Water Treatment Manager; and Andrew Guzman, IT Technician. 
 
Mayor Campbell stated that Billy Jackson, Chairman of the Planning Commission, has resigned from 
the Planning Commission due to his job.  He said we will need to nominate someone to take his place. 
Councilmember Morris said there is no one representing District 3 on the Planning Commission. 
Mayor Campbell asked Councilmember Morris if she knew of someone from District 3 who would 
like to serve on the Planning Commission.  Councilmember Morris stated that she knew of someone 
to nominate.  
 
Railroad Crossing Closures:  Staff briefed the City Council on the plan for the railroad closing.   City 
Council asked for a map to be provided on the website for the residents of Big Hill Road showing how 
to get to Charlie Gay Drive.   The City Council asked for staff to contact the Board of Education to find 
out how they are planning to handle the special needs bus route during the closing. 
 
Review of Council Agenda Items: The Interim City Manager gave an overview of the council agenda 
items.   
 
Transcribed & submitted by:  The Clerk of Council 
Accepted & approved by:  The City Council on 3/19/24 
 
 
 



  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2024 1 

 

M I N U T E S 
 

City Council Meeting 
Monday, March 4, 2024 @ 6:00 p.m. 

 
Call to Order:  Mayor Campbell called to order the meeting at approximately 6:00 p.m. 
 
Opening: Councilmember Hall gave the invocation and Mayor Campbell led the City Council in the 
pledge of allegiance to the flag.  
 
Roll Call 
Council Members:  Mayor Bruce Campbell, Mayor Por-tem Marcia Daniel, Councilmember Gwyn 
Hall, Councilmember Richard Lassiter, Jr., Councilmember Natalyn Morris, Councilmember Ruiz, 
and Councilmember Tice. 
 
Staff Members:  Rhonda Ferrell-Bowles, Interim City Manager; James P. Gerard, City Attorney, and 
Gil Ballard, Chief of Police. 
 
Informal Public Comment:  Mayor Campbell opened the floor to receive public comment.  Given 
there were no speakers, Mayor Campbell closed the informal public comment. 
 
Public Hearings 
Alcoholic Beverage License Application (Pump N Go):  Mayor Campbell opened the public hearing 
to receive comments on an application made by Harshkumar Chaudhari to sell wines, beer, and/or 
malt beverages at Pump N Go, 4820 Augusta Road, Garden City, Georgia.  

Given there were no speakers for or against the application, Mayor Campbell closed the public 
hearing. 

Alcoholic Beverage License Application (Yogi):  Mayor Campbell opened the public hearing to 
receive comments on an application made by Kinjal Suthar to sell wines, beer, and/or malt beverages 
at Yogi, 1298 U.S. Highway 80, Garden City, Georgia.  

Given there were no speakers for or against the application, Mayor Campbell closed the public 
hearing.  

City Council Minutes:  Councilmember Lassiter motioned to approve the minutes from the February 
20th pre-agenda session and city council meeting.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember 
Daniel and passed without opposition. 

Items for Consideration 
First Reading - Ordinance – Zoning Map Amendment:  The Clerk of Council read the first 
reading of the heading of an ordinance for An ordinance to amend the zoning ordinance and map 
of Garden City, Georgia, as amended, to rezone certain properties owned by Pro Land 



  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2024 2 

 

Investment, LLC, at 439 and 439A Telfair Road, Garden City, Georgia, from their present zoning 
classification of “R-2” to an “I-2” zoning classification. 

Councilmember Daniel motioned to approve the ordinance on the first reading.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Ruiz and passed without opposition. 

Councilmember Lassiter motioned to suspend the rules of council and hold the second reading of 
the ordinance.  The motion was seconded by Councilmember Morris and passed without opposition. 

Second Reading - Ordinance – Zoning Map Amendment:  The Clerk of Council read the first 
reading of the heading of an ordinance for An ordinance to amend the zoning ordinance and map 
of Garden City, Georgia, as amended, to rezone certain properties owned by Pro Land 
Investment, LLC, at 439 and 439A Telfair Road, Garden City, Georgia, from their present zoning 
classification of “R-2” to an “I-2” zoning classification. 

Councilmember Ruiz motioned to adopt the ordinance on the second reading.  The motion was 
seconded by Councilmember Daniel and passed without opposition.  

Resolution - Lavender & Associates Gym Complex Construction Contract: The Clerk of 
Council read the heading of a resolution authorizing the Interim City Manager to execute a 
construction management services contract, including a cost budget and time schedule, with 
Lavender & Associates, Inc., for the construction of a new multi-purpose recreation complex on 
the city-owned Haynes Elementary School site off of US Highway 80 in Garden City.  

Councilmember Lassiter motioned to adopt the resolution.   The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Tice and passed without opposition. 

Mayor Campbell called for a motion to adopt the resolutions appointing the following municipal 
court officials.    

 Resolution, Chief Judge Agreement (Harmon):  A resolution by the City Council to 
authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Crystal Harmon, 
which sets forth the terms of Ms. Harmon’s appointment as the Chief Judge of the 
Garden City Municipal Court.  

 
 Resolution, Associate Judge Agreement (Moody): A resolution by the City Council 

to authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Lindy Moody, 
which sets forth the terms of Ms. Moody’s appointment as the Associate Judge of the 
Garden City Municipal Court.  
 
 
 



  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2024 3 

 

 Resolution, Judge Pro-tem Agreement (Tomlison):  A resolution by the City Council 
to authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Billy Tomlinson, 
which sets forth the terms of Mr. Tomlinson’s appointment as the Judge Pro-tem of 
the Garden City Municipal Court.  

 
 Resolution, Judge Pro-tem Agreement (Call):  A resolution by the City Council to 

authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Craig Call, which 
sets forth the terms of Mr. Call’s appointment as the Judge Pro-tem of the Garden City 
Municipal Court.  

 
 Resolution, Prosecuting Attorney Agreement (Wilson): A resolution by the City 

Council to authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Ty 
Wilson, which sets forth the terms of Mr. Wilson’s appointment as the City’s 
Prosecuting Attorney.  

 
 Resolution, Pro-Tem Prosecuting Attorney Appointment (Beard):  A resolution to 

appoint Ashley Beard to serve as the City’s Pro-tem Prosecuting Attorney. 
    

 Resolution, Public Defender Agreement (Bradley):  A resolution by the City Council 
to authorize the Mayor to execute an agreement between the City and Caroline 
Bradley, which sets forth the terms of Ms. Bradley’s appointment as the City’s Public 
Defender.  

 
 Resolution, Public Defender Appointment (Tell):  A resolution by the Mayor and 

Council to appoint Lawrence Tell to serve as Public Defender if Public Defender 
Caroline Bradley is unavailable to perform her duties for court. 

Councilmember Daniel motioned to adopt the resolutions appointing the court officials.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Morris and passed without opposition.  

Resolution, Surplus Police Vehicles:   A resolution by the Mayor and Council to classify as surplus 
property and sell at public auction eleven (11) of its police vehicles that no longer serve any public 
purpose.  

Councilmember Daniel motioned to adopt the resolution.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Hall and passed without opposition. 

Resolution – Amendment to City Council Meeting Schedule: The Clerk of Council read the 
heading of a resolution to amend the regular meeting schedule of the Garden City City Council; 
to eliminate the March 18, 2024, regular city council meeting due to the St. Patrick’s Day holiday; 
and to establish a meeting of the City Council on March 19, 2024.   



  
CITY COUNCIL MINUTES – MARCH 4, 2024 4 

 

Councilmember Tice motioned to adopt the resolution.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Ruiz.  Councilmember Daniel, Councilmember Hall, Councilmember Lassiter, 
Councilmember Ruiz, Councilmember Tice, and Mayor Campbell voted in favor with 
Councilmember Morris opposed.   

Resolution – Withdrawal of Annexation Local Legislation: The Clerk of Council read the 
heading of a resolution of the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, requesting 
the Local Legislative Delegation to withdraw the City’s request for local legislation dealing with 
annexation.  

Councilmember Hall motioned to adopt the resolution.  The motion was seconded by 
Councilmember Daniel and passed without opposition.  

Alcoholic Beverage License Application (Pump N Go): Consideration of an application made by 
Harshkumar Chaudhari to sell wines, beer, and/or malt beverages at Pump N Go, 4820 August 
Road, Garden City, Georgia.  

Councilmember Lassiter motioned to approve the alcoholic beverage license application.  The 
motion was seconded by Councilmember Ruiz and passed without opposition. 

Alcoholic Beverage License Application (Yogi):  Consideration of an application made by Kinjal 
Suthar to sell wines, beer, and/or malt beverages at Yogi, 1298 U.S. Highway 80, Garden City, 
Georgia.  

Councilmember Ruiz motioned to approve the alcoholic beverage license application.  The motion 
was seconded by Councilmember Hall and passed without opposition. 

Adjournment:  Give no other items for discussion, Mayor Campbell called for a motion to adjourn 
the meeting.  Councilmember Ruiz motioned to adjourn the meeting at approximately 6:15 p.m.  
The motion was seconded by Councilmember Hall and passed without opposition. 

 
 
Transcribed & submitted by:  The Clerk of Council 
Accepted & approved by:  The City Council on 3/19/24. 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
WORKSHOP SYNOPSIS – MARCH 11, 2024 1 

 

SYNOPSIS 
 

City Council Workshop 
Monday, March 11, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. 

 
Call to Order:  Mayor Campbell called the workshop to order at approximately 5:30 p.m. Mayor Pro-tem 
Daniel gave the invocation. 
 
Attendees: 
Council Members:  Mayor Bruce Campbell, Mayor Pro-tem Marcia Daniel, Councilmember Gwyn Hall, 
Councilmember Richard Lassiter, Councilmember Natalyn Morris, Councilmember Debbie Ruiz, and 
Councilmember Kim Tice.  
 
Staff Members:  Rhonda Ferrell-Bowles, Interim City Manager; James P. Gerard, City Attorney; Yoland 
Irizarry, HR Director; Cliff Ducey, Recreation Director; Marth Valada, Water Operations Manager; Virgil 
Moore, Public Works Manager; Dagny Pariani, WWTP Manager; Gil Ballard, Police Chief; Mike Dick, Fire 
Chief; Jonathan Trego, Code Enforcement, and Andrew Guzman, IT Technician. 
 
Speaker:  Brennan Jones, Brennan Jones Engineering Assoc., LLC. 
 
Water Withdrawal Permit Changes & Water Supply Options:  Mr. Jones stated that Georgia EPD issued 
a Groundwater Withdrawal Permit to Garden City on December 31, 2025, containing a timeline to reduce 
the City’s groundwater withdrawals. He gave an overview of the withdrawal limits and options related to 
supplementing the City’s water supply as described in the attached memorandum.    
 
FY23 Year-End Budget Amendments:  The Finance Director gave an overview of the 2023 year-end 
unaudited budget amendments.  She said the resolutions to approve the year-end budget amendments 
will be on the March 19th council agenda for formal consideration by the City Council.  
 
2024 Capital Outlay Requests:  The Finance Director gave an overview of the following capital outlay 
requests.   She said the resolutions to approve the capital outlay requests for purchase will be on the 
March 19th council agenda for formal consideration by the City Council.  

 Wastewater Treatment & Water Treatment 
o SCADA System Upgrades Capital Outlay Request  

 Water & Sewer Repair  
o Vacuum Excavator Capital Outlay Request  
o Pipeline Inspection Camera Capital Outlay Request  

 Public Works  
o Roller Packer Capital Outlay Request  

 Public Safety  
o Police - Tough Books Capital Outlay Request  

 Parks & Recreation Items 
o F-150 Super Cab Truck Capital Outlay Request  

 
 



  
WORKSHOP SYNOPSIS – MARCH 11, 2024 2 

 

Nominees To Replace Planning Commission Member Billy Jackson:  Mayor Campbell asked for 
nominations for the City Council.  Councilmember Morris nominated Chad Flowers to serve the 
remainder of Billy Jackson’s term on the Planning Commission.  She said that currently, there is no one 
representing District 3 on the Planning Commission.  
 
The City Council recommended placing the nomination on the March 19th council agenda for formal 
consideration by the City Council.  
 
Given no other items to discuss, the Mayor and City Council unanimously adjourned the workshop at 
approximately 6:57 p.m. 
 
Transcribed & submitted by:  The Clerk of Council 
Accepted & approved by:  The City Council on 3/19/24 



























































GARDEN CITY RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Garden City, Georgia, desires to purchase a compaction roller for its Public Works 
Department  to pack asphalt when filling potholes and for other packing needs; and, 

WHEREAS, monies totaling $21,174.00 in the City's Public Works Fund have been budgeted for 
such purchase in the 2024 Public Works Capital Projects Budget; and, 

WHEREAS, the City solicited price quotes/sales proposals for the purchase of the compaction roller; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the best quote for the equipment was received from Gridiron Tractors and Equipment 

of Pooler, Georgia, in the amount of $47,800.00; and, 

WHEREAS, the Director of the City's Public Works Department has recommended that the City 

enter into a purchase order or contract for the compaction roller with Gridiron Tractors and Equipment at 

the quoted price of $47,800.00, having determined that the purchase price is fair and reasonable; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of Garden City, Georgia, that 
price quote of Gridiron Tractors and Equipment for a new compaction roller in the amount of $47,800.00 
be accepted, and that a purchase order or agreement be entered into between the City and the vendor. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the purchase price for the compaction roller of $47,800.00 be 
funded by the City's Public Works Fund, using the $21,174.00 which had been budgeted for such purchase 

in said Fund's 2024 Capital Projects Budget, and amending such Budget to cover the shortage in the amount 
of $26,626.00 by reallocating funds in said amount from the infrastructure improvements line item of said 
Budget to the capital projects line item for the compaction roller. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to sign the purchase contract or 
order for the compaction roller associated with the price quote of Gridiron Tractors and Equipment, as well 

as all other documents associated therewith in the name of the City, with the City Clerk's attestation affixed 

to said Manager's signature. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 19th day of March, 2024. 

RHONDA FERRELL-BOWLES, Clerk of Council 

Received and approved this 19th day of March, 2024. 

BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 



GARDEN CITY RESOLUTION 

WHEREAS, Garden City, Georgia, desires to replace the existing laptops in its police vehicles which 

are currently outdated; and, 

WHEREAS, monies totaling $90,000.00 in the City's American Rescue Plan Act ("ARPA") Fund 

have been budgeted for such replacement; and, 

WHEREAS, the City solicited price quotes/sales proposals for the purchase of the replacement 

laptops; and, 

WHEREAS, the best quote for the equipment was received from Software House Intematioinal 

("SHI"), of Somerset, New Jersey, in the amount of$61,668.39, which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; and, 

WHEREAS, the Director of the City's Information Technology Department has recommended that 

the City enter into a purchase order or contract for the replacement laptops with SHI at the quoted price of 

$61,668.39, having determined that the purchase price is fair and reasonable; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and Council of Garden City, Georgia, that 

price quote of SHI for replacement laptops to be installed in the City's police vehicles in the amount of 

$61,688.39 be accepted, and that a purchase order or agreement be entered into between the City and the 

vendor. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the purchase price for the replacement laptops of$61,688.39 
be funded by the City's ARPA Fund as provided for in the City's 2024 ARPA Budget. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Manager is authorized to sign the purchase contract 

or order for the laptops associated with the quote attached hereto as Exhibit "A", as well as all other 

documents associated therewith in the name of the City, with the City Clerk's attestation affixed to said 

Manager's signature. 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 19th day of March, 2024. 

RHONDA FERRELL-BOWLES, Clerk of Council 

Received and approved this 19th day of March, 2024. 

BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 



















 
RESOLUTION 

 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 GENERAL 
OPERATING FUND BUDGET; TO ADJUST FOR THE DIFFERENCES 
BETWEEN THE ORIGINALLY ADOPTED AND PRESENTLY 
PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES FOR CERTAIN 
VARIOUS LINE ITEMS IN THE CITY’S GENERAL FUND BUDGET. 

 
WHEREAS, an amendment in the General Fund Budget is needed to adjust for the differences 
between the originally adopted revenues and expenditures for various line items as set forth in the 
attached Exhibit “A” after taking into account money actually received and spent as of December 
31, 2023, from the FY2023 General Operating Fund Budget, as opposed to the originally 
budgeted revenues and expenditures. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of Garden City, Georgia, in 
regular session assembled, do approve an amendment to the FY2023 General Fund Operating 
Budget to accurately reflect the difference between the originally adopted revenues and 
expenditures and the amended revenues and expenditures based on actual revenues and 
expenditures as of December 31, 2023, with respect to each of the City’s various departments as 
set forth in the attached Exhibit “A.”  
 
ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, this 19th day of 
March, 2024. 

 
   _________________________________________ 
   RHONDA FERRELL BOWLES, Clerk of Council 
 

Received and approved this 19th day of March 2024. 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 
   BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

General Fund  
 

FY23 Unaudited Year-End General Fund Budget Amendment Summary 
GENERAL FUND 2023

2023 Year-End $ %
Adopted Amended Change Change

Revenues
General Fund Operating Revenue 9,836,296       14,944,634      5,108,338        52%

Operating Revenues 9,836,296       14,944,634      5,108,338        52%
Appropriation of Prior Year's Fund Balance 1,254,600       -                       (1,254,600)       -100%

General Fund Revenue Total 11,090,896     14,944,634      3,853,738        35%
Operating & Captial Expenditures
Legislative 113,600$        103,900           (9,700)              -9%
Executive 550,975          549,400           (1,575)              0%
Information Technology 781,553          988,100           206,547           26%
Finance 231,665          165,400           (66,265)            -29%
Human Resources 261,258          187,058           (74,200)            -28%
Municipal Court 246,250          343,530           97,280             40%
Police 4,734,645       4,805,000        70,355             1%
Emergency Management 11,500            12,400             900                  8%
Public Works 1,245,650       1,055,700        (189,950)          -15%
Senior Center 221,000          256,550           35,550             16%
Parks and Recreation 967,800          973,700           5,900               1%
Planning, Zoning & Building 675,000          658,158           (16,842)            -2%

Operating & Capital Expenditures 10,040,896$   10,098,896      58,000             1%
Transfers Out
Transfer Out From General Fund to Fire Protection Fund  1,050,000       2,136,423        1,086,423        103%
Transfer Out From General Fund to Sanitation Fund -                  36,546             36,546             100%
Transfer Out From General Fund to Stormwater Fund -                  -                       -                       0%

Transfers Out 1,050,000$     2,172,969        1,086,423        107%
GENERAL FUND BUDGET TOTAL 11,090,896$   12,271,865      1,180,969        11%

Net Surplus (Loss) -$                2,672,769         
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY2023 BUDGETS FOR THE 
FOUR ENTERPRISE FUNDS; TO ADJUST FOR THE 
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE ORIGINALLY ADOPTED AND 
PRESENTLY PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR 
CERTAIN VARIOUS LINE ITEMS IN THE BUDGETS OF THE 
FOUR DIFFERENT ENTERPRISE FUNDS. 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment in the Fire Protection Fund Budget, the Stormwater Fund 
Budget, Sanitation Fund Budget, and the Water/Sewer Fund Budget is needed to adjust 
for the differences between the originally adopted revenues and expenditures for various 
line items as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” after taking into account money 
actually received and spent as of December 31, 2023 from the FY2023 Budget for the 
four Enterprise Funds, as opposed to the originally budgeted revenues and expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of Garden City, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled, do approve an amendment in the Fire Protection 
Fund Budget, the Stormwater Fund Budget, the Sanitation Fund Budget, and the 
Water/Sewer Fund Budget in order to accurately reflect the differences between the 
originally adopted revenues and expenses and the amended revenues and expenses for the 
FY2023 Enterprise Funds based on actual income and expenses as of December 31, 
2023, with respect to each of the City’s various departments as set forth on the attached 
Exhibit “A”. 
 

 
ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, this 19th day 
of March 2023. 

 
   _________________________________________ 
   RHONDA FERRELL BOWLES, Clerk of Council 
 

 
Received and approved this 19th day of March 2023 

 
 
   ________________________________________ 
   BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Enterprise Funds 
 
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Fire Protection Fund Budget Amendment Summary 
Fire Protection Fund 2023

2023 Year-End $ %
Adopted Amended Change Change

Revenue
Operating Revenue 1,705,900        2,130,890            424,990      25%

Operating Revenues 1,705,900        2,130,890            424,990      25%
Transfer in from General Fund 1,050,000        2,136,423            1,086,423   103%
Appropriation of Prior Year's Net Position -                       168,474               168,474      

Transfer In From Other Funds 1,050,000        2,304,897            1,254,897   120%
Revenue Total 2,755,900        4,435,787            1,679,887   61%

Expenditures
Operating & Capital 2,755,900    4,435,787            1,679,887   61%

Operating & Capital Expenditures Subtotal 2,755,900      4,435,787            1,679,887   61%
Operating & Capital Budget Total 2,755,900        4,435,787            1,679,887   61%

Net Surplus (Loss) -                       -                           -                   
 
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Stormwater Fund Budget Amendment Summary  
Stormwater Fund 2023

2023 Year-End $ %
Adopted Amended Change Change

Revenue
Stormwater Utility Fees 1,125,173        1,109,290        (15,883)         -1%
Transfer In - General Fund -                       -                       -                    
Appropriation fo Prior Year's Net Position -                       76,073             76,073          

Total Revenue 1,125,173        1,185,363        (15,883)         5%
Expenditures
Operating 1,125,173        1,185,363        60,190          0                   
Capital Improvement Expenditures -                       -                       -                    

Total Operating & Capital Expenditures 1,125,173        1,185,363        60,190          5%
Total Expenditures 1,125,173        1,185,363        60,190          5%
Net Surplus (Loss) -                       -                       

  
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Sanitation Fund Budget Amendment  
Sanitation Fund 2023

2023 Year-End $ %
Expenditure Description Adopted Amended Change Change

Revenue
Revenue 440,010        447,903           7,893            2%
Transfer in From General Fund -                    36,546             
Transfer in From Stormwater Fund 30,000          30,000             -                    0%
Appropriation of Prior Year's Net Position -                    9,440               

Total Revenue 470,010        523,889           53,879          11%
Expenditures
Operating 420,010        483,689           63,679          15%
Dry Trash Disposal 50,000          40,200             (9,800)           -20%

Total Expenditures 470,010        523,889           53,879          11%
Net Surplus (Loss) -                    -                        



 
 

Exhibit “A” 
 

Enterprise Funds (Continued) 
 
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Water/Sewer Fund Budget Amendment Summary  
Water/Sewer Fund  2023

2023 Year-End $ %
Expenditure Description Adopted Amended Change Change

Revenue
Operating Revenue 4,701,104     5,539,853        838,749        18%
FEMA Reimbursement -                    -                       -                    0%

Total Revenue 4,701,104     5,539,853        838,749        18%
Expenditures:
Wastewater Treatment & Collection 1,619,200     990,293           (628,907)       -39%
Water Treatment 879,000        605,174           (273,826)       -31%
W/S Distribution, Billing & Repair (Includes Depreciation Expense) 1,523,700     3,060,969        1,537,269     101%
 Debt Service 679,204        679,844           640               0%

Total Expenditures 4,701,104     5,336,280        635,176        14%
Net Surplus (Loss) -                    203,573            

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

RESOLUTION 
 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FY2023 BUDGETS FOR THE 
TWO SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS; TO ADJUST FOR THE 
DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE ORIGINALLY ADOPTED AND 
PRESENTLY PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR 
CERTAIN VARIOUS LINE ITEMS IN THE BUDGETS OF THE  
DIFFERENT SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS. 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment in the Confiscated Assets Fund Budget and the Hotel/Motel 
Tax Fund Budget is needed to adjust for the differences between the originally adopted 
revenues and expenditures for various line items as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” 
after taking into account money actually received and spent as of December 31, 2023, 
from the FY2023 Budget for the three Special Revenue Funds, as opposed to the 
originally budgeted revenues and expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of Garden City, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled, do approve an amendment in the Confiscated 
Assets Fund Budget and the Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Budget in order to accurately reflect 
the differences between the originally adopted revenues and expenses and the amended 
revenues and expenses for the FY2023 Special Revenue Funds based on actual income 
and expenses as of December 31, 2023, with respect to each of the City’s various line 
items as set forth on the attached Exhibit “A.” 
 

 
ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, this 19th 
day of March 2023. 

 
 
   _________________________________________ 
   RHONDA FERRELL BOWLES, Clerk of Council 
 

 
Received and approved this 19th day of March, 2023 

 
 
   __________________________________________ 
   BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 

 
 
 

 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Special Revenue Funds 
 
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Confiscated Assets Fund Budget Amendment Summary 
Confiscated Assets Fund 2023

2023 Year-End
Adopted Amended

Cash Confiscation 3,500               8,339               
Other Refunds 3,000               -                       
Prior Year's Fund Balance -                       

Total Revenue 6,500               8,339               
Dues & Fees 1,500               -                       
Education & Training -                       -                       
Supplies 2,000               -                       
Small Equipment 1,000               -                       
Canine Supplies 2,000               3,134               

Total Expenditures 6,500               3,134               
Net Surplus (Loss) 5,205                

 
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Hotel/Motel Tax Fund Budget Amendment Summary 
Hotel/Motel Tax Fund 2023

2023 Year-end 
Description Adopted Amended

Hotel/Motel Taxes 435,000           473,684           
Hotel/Motel Penalties & Interest 50                    170                  
Interest Revenues -                       -                       

Total Revenue 435,050           473,854           
Bank Fees
Payments to Other Agencies (Sav. Trade Ctr.) 72,523             78,991             
Payments to CVB (Garden City Convention Visitors Bureau) 145,002           157,936           
Transfers Out to General Fund 217,525           236,927           
Transfers Out to Tourism Board -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 435,050           473,854           
Net Surplus (Loss) -                       -                        



RESOLUTION 
 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 SPLOST 
FUND BUDGET; TO ADJUST FOR THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN 
THE ORIGINALLY ADOPTED AND PRESENTLY PROJECTED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR CERTAIN VARIOUS LINE 
ITEMS IN THE SPLOST FUND BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment in the SPLOST Fund Budget is needed to adjust for the 
differences between the originally adopted revenues and expenditures for various line 
items as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” after taking into account money actually 
received and spent as of December 31, 2023, from the FY2023 SPLOST Fund Budget, as 
opposed to the originally budgeted revenues and expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of Garden City, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled, do approve an amendment in the SPLOST Fund 
Budget to accurately reflect the differences between the originally adopted revenues and 
expenses and the amended revenues and expenses for the FY2023 SPLOST Fund based 
on actual income and expenses as of December 31, 2023, as set forth on the attached 
Exhibit “A.” 
 

 
ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, this 19th day 
of March, 2023. 

 
   _________________________________________ 
   RHONDA FERRELL BOWLES, Clerk of Council 
 

Received and approved this 19th day of March, 2023 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 
   BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT “A” 
 

SPLOST FUND 
 

FY23 Unaudited Year-End SPLOST Fund Budget Amendment Summary  
SPLOST FUND 2023

2023 Year-End
Description Adopted Amended

SPLOST Revenue 2,095,936        3,055,263        
State Aid (LMIG) 100,000           104,015           
Propoerty Sale (Gym/Stadium) $3,000,000 -                       3,000,000        

Total Revenues 2,195,936        6,159,278        
Town Center Development 100,000           -                       
Recreation Site Improvements 350,000           48,200             
Recreation New Gymnasium 550,000           78,800             
City Street Paving & Right of Way Improvements: -                       -                       

Public Works Street Paving & ROW Improvements 110,000           293,500           
Fire Department Vehicles & Equipment: -                       -                       

GCFD Vehicles + Equipment FY24 (3) Vehicles -                       -                       
GCFD Other Equipment 83,200             47,500             

FY23 (6) Self Contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) $22,200 -                       -                       
FY23 (4) Motorola Portable Radios $28,000 -                       -                       

Police Department Vehicles & Equipment: -                       -                       
GCPD Vehicles +Equipment: FY23 (5) Vehicles  300,000           341,700           
GCPD Other Equipment -                       -                       

Debt Service: -                       -                       
Recreation Bond - Principal (New Gym) -                       -                       
Recreation Bond - Interest (New Gym) -                       -                       
Recreation Bond - Debt Issuance Cost (New Gym) -                       -                       
City Hall Loan Principal (FY20 - FY27) 625,000           625,000           
City Hall Loan Interest 34,398             33,840             
GCPD FY18 (6) Vehicles - Capital Lease Payment (FY18-FY21) -                       
GCPD Vehicles Interest - FY18 Capital Lease -                       
GCPD FY20 (6) Vehicles - Capital Lease Payment (FY20-FY23) 42,820             41,366             
GCPD Vehicles Interest - FY20-FY23 Capital Lease 518                  1,971               

Transfer Out to Fire Protection Fund: -                       -                       
Pumper Trucks Debt Service ($152,715) (FY16-FY22) -                       -                       

Total Expenditures 2,195,936        1,511,877        
Net Surplus (Loss) -                               4,647,401              

 
 
  



RESOLUTION 
 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 CAPITAL 
PROJECTS FUND BUDGET FOR THE NEW GYM RECREATION 
COMPLEX; TO ADJUST FOR THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN 
THE ORIGINALLY ADOPTED AND PRESENTLY PROJECTED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR CERTAIN VARIOUS LINE 
ITEMS IN THE CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment in the Capital Projects Fund Budget is needed to adjust for 
the differences between the originally adopted revenues and expenditures for various line 
items as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” after taking into account money actually 
received and spent as of December 31, 2023, from the FY2023 Capital Projects Fund 
Budget, as opposed to the originally budgeted revenues and expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of Garden City, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled, do approve an amendment in the Capital Projects 
Fund Budget to accurately reflect the differences between the originally adopted revenues 
and expenses and the amended revenues and expenses for the FY2023 Capital Projects 
Fund based on actual income and expenses as of December 31, 2023, as set forth on the 
attached Exhibit “A.” 
 

 
ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, this 19th day 
of March, 2023. 

 
   _________________________________________ 
   RHONDA FERRELL BOWLES, Clerk of Council 
 

Received and approved this 19th day of March, 2023 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 
   BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND 
(New Gym Recreation Complex) 

 
FY23 Unaudited Year-End Capital Projects Fund Budget Amendment Summary  
Capital Projects Fund (New Gym_Rec. Complex) 2023

2023 Year-End
Adopted Amended

Interest Revenues -                               170,737                  
Long-term Debt Issued -                                16,970,000               
Offering Premium on Bonds -                                80,891                      

Total Revenue -                                17,221,628               
Recreation Building & Improvements -                                43,050                      
Debt Issuance Cost -                                357,147                    

Total Expenditures -                                400,197                    
Net Surplus (Loss) -                                          16,821,431                        

 
 
  



RESOLUTION 
 
 
A RESOLUTION TO AMEND THE FISCAL YEAR 2023 ARPA  
FUND BUDGET; TO ADJUST FOR THE DIFFERENCES BETWEEN 
THE ORIGINALLY ADOPTED AND PRESENTLY PROJECTED 
REVENUES AND EXPENSES FOR CERTAIN VARIOUS LINE 
ITEMS IN THE ARPA FUND BUDGET. 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment in the ARPA (American Rescue Plan Act) Fund Budget is 
needed to adjust for the differences between the originally adopted revenues and 
expenditures for various line items as set forth in the attached Exhibit “A” after taking 
into account money actually received and spent as of December 31, 2023, from the 
FY2023 ARPA Fund Budget, as opposed to the originally budgeted revenues and 
expenditures. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Mayor and Council of Garden City, 
Georgia, in regular session assembled, do approve an amendment in the Capital Projects 
Fund Budget to accurately reflect the differences between the originally adopted revenues 
and expenses and the amended revenues and expenses for the FY2023 ARPA Fund based 
on actual income and expenses as of December 31, 2023, as set forth on the attached 
Exhibit “A.” 
 

 
ADOPTED BY the Mayor and Council of the City of Garden City, Georgia, this 19th day 
of March, 2023. 

 
   _________________________________________ 
   RHONDA FERRELL BOWLES, Clerk of Council 
 

Received and approved this 19th day of March, 2023 
 
 
   __________________________________________ 
   BRUCE CAMPBELL, Mayor 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT “A” 

 
ARPA FUND 

(American Rescue Plan Act) 
 

FY23 Unaudited Year-End ARPA Fund Budget Amendment Summary  
ARPA Fund 2023

2023 Year-End
Adopted Amended

ARPA Fiscal Recovery Funds 3,256,275                 3,256,275                 
Interest Revenues 4,719                        34,539                      

Total Revenue 3,260,994                 3,290,814                 
(6) Police Vehicles + Equipment -                                -                                
Police Vehicle Tough Books -                                -                                
Equipment to Outfit New Ladder Truck & Fire Engine -                                
(1) Fire Pumper Truck +Equipment -                                -                                
(1) Fire Ladder Truck +Equipment -                                -                                

Total Expenditures -                                -                                
Net Surplus (Loss) 3,260,994                         3,290,814                          

 
 
  




